- Chartered Accountants
DEIOltte Indiabulls Finance Centre
= Tower 3, 27""-32™ Floor
Haskins & SellsLLP
Elphinstone Road (West)
Mumbai - 400 013
Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 22 6185 4000
Fax: +91 22 6185 4001

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of Amba River Coke Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Amba River Coke Limited
(the “Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019, and the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and a

summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (the “"Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (*Ind AS") and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31 March 2019, and its profit, total comprehensive income, changes in

equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate

to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements. / N é
&

e
Regd. Office: Indiabulls Finance Centre, Tower 3, 27" - 32™ Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road (West), Mumbai - 400 013, Maharashtra, Ind[#*‘ MUMBAI
(LLP Identification No. AAB-8737) *’

\. - \
NS C’ »

,! A_.'



Deloitte

Haskins & Sells LLP
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
We have determined the matter described below to be the key audit matter to be

communicated in our report.

Description of key audit matter Auditors’ response

Recognition and recoverability of | Our procedures on management’s
Government Grant assessment of recognition and
In terms of the ‘Package Scheme of | recoverability of the government grant
Incentives 2007’ of the Government of | under PSI Scheme included:
Maharashtra ("GOM”) (the “PSI Scheme”), | - Evaluating the design and testing the
the Company is eligible for subsidy in the | operating effectiveness of the relevant
form of refund of state taxes (VAT) on sales | controls over recognition and assessment
made from its plants located at Dolvi, | of recoverability of the grant recognised
Maharashtra. under PSI Scheme

- Evaluating the impact of notifications
The GOM, vide resolutions issued during the
and resolutions issued by the GOM in
previous and current year, made certain
relation to PSI Scheme under GST regime
amendments to modalities for sanction and
- Discussion with the Company’s legal
disbursement of the refund of such taxes
team, management and external legal

under the new GST regime.
counsel, as applicable, for their

There is a risk that the benefit under the PSI | a3ssessment of entitlement of benefits
Scheme may not be recoverable by the | ynder PSI Scheme

Company. - Engaging our internal specialists to
[Refer Note 20 to the financial statements | assess relevant historical and recent

for government grant disclosures]. update passed by the relevant authorities

to evaluate the appropriateness of the

conclusion reached by the management;

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Director's Report, but does not

include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do

not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.




Deloitte
Haskins & Sells LLP

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of

our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have

nothing to report in this regard.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS

and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic

alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial

reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements

as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to

issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of

assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will

always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud

or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified

misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Those Charged with Governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best

of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt

with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31
March 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31 March 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in "Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion

on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial
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g)

h)

2.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in

accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the

explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial

position in its financial statements;

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term

contracts including derivative contracts;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor

Education and Protection Fund by the Company;

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued
by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in
“Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/ W-100018)

%w» WM

Samir R. Shah
Partner

Mumbai, 30 April 2019 (Membership No. 101708)
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ANNEXURE “"A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory

Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Amba River
Coke Limited ("the Company”) as of 31 March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the

financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’'s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal financial control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the

Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the
Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated

effectively in all material respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of

material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system

over financial reporting.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of

the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance

with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at 31 March, 2019, based on the internal financial control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of

India.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 117366W/ W-100018)

Samir R. Shah

Partner
Mumbai, 30 April 2019 (Membership No. 101708)
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

(1)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
guantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a program of verification of fixed assets to cover all the items
in a phased manner over a period of three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to
the program, certain fixed assets were physically verified by the management during
the year. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The Company does not have any immovable properties of freehold or leasehold
land and acquired building and hence reporting under paragraph 3(i) (c) of the Order
is not applicable.

As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the
Management at reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on
physical verification.

The Company has not granted during the year loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the
Register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

In our Opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013
in respect of grant of loans, making investments and providing guarantees and
securities, as applicable. The Company has not granted any loans to director during
the year and hence Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposit and hence reporting under paragraph 3 (v) of the Order is not
applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under
section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. We have broadly reviewed the cost
records maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and
Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended prescribed by the Central Government under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and are of the opinion that,
prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained. We have,
however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to
determine whether they are accurate or complete.
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(vii) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory
dues:

(@) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues,
including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods &
Services Tax Customs Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to
it with the appropriate authorities.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty,
Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Goods & Services Tax, Cess and other material
statutory dues in arrears as at 31 March 2019 for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

(c) Details of dues of Customs Duty which have not been deposited as on 31 March
2019 on account of disputes are given below:

Name of Nature of Dues Forum Period(s) to Amount Amount paid
Statue where which unpaid under protest
dispute is amount (Rs. In (rs. In crores)
L N pending relates* crores)
The Custom Duty | CESTAT 2014-15 to 269.55 7.73
Customs | (including 2017-18
Act, 1962 | interest and
penalty) N

*Period represents the earliest year to the latest year

There were no dues of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Goods & Services
Tax, Value Added Tax and Excise Duty which have not been deposited as at 31
March 2019 on account of dispute.

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to banks and
dues to debenture holders. The Company has not taken any loans or borrowings
from financial institutions and government.

(ix) The Company has neither raised any moneys by way of initial public offer/further
public offer (including debt instruments)/term loans nor were such proceeds pending
to be applied, during the current year and hence reporting under paragraph 3(ix) of
the order is not applicable.

(x) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations
given to us, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its
officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has paid/ provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule
V to the Companies Act ,2013.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under paragraph 3 (xii)

of the Order is not applicable. ﬁ“‘
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(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

In our Opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013,
where applicable, for all the transactions with the related parties and the details of
related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting
under paragraph 3 (xiv) of Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during
the year, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly paragraph 3 (xv) of the Order
is not applicable.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve

Bank of India Act, 1934.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No. 117366W/ W-100018)

\w ‘/{U

Samir R. Shah
Partner
(Membership No. 101708)

Mumbai, dated: 30 April 2019



AMBA RIVER COKE LIMITED
Balance sheet as at March 31, 2019

Rs. in crores

Notes As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
| ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 2 28.19 29.26
{b) Capital work-in-progress 17.04 9.73
(c) Financial assets
(i} Investments 3 52.38 41.92
{ii) Finance lease receivables ¢ 4 2,019.80 2,116.00
(iti) Loans 5 - 64.02
{iv) Other financial assets 6 99.42 94.62
(d) Deferred tax assets (net) 36 - 7.02
(e) Other non-current assets 7 110.06 11.24
Total non-current assets 2,326.89 2,373.81
Current assets
(a) Inventories 8 445.64 652.49
(b) Financial assets
{i) Trade receivables 9 50.99 35.90
(ii} Cash and cash equivalents 10A 0.21 4.49
(iii) Bank balances other than (i) above 10B 7.45 7.02
(iv) Finance lease receivables 4 100.18 88.03
{v) Loans 5 421.57 70.62
(vi) Other financial assets 6 171.91 414,07
(c) Other current assets 7 160.37 162.48
Total current assets 1,358.32 1,435.10
TOTAL ASSETS 3,685.21 3,808.91
I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 11 931.90 931.90
(b) Other equity 12 764.51 579.74
Total equity 1,696,41 1,511.A4
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 756.88 943.15
(b) Provisions 15 3.18 2.93
(c) Deferred tax liabilities(net) 36 33.66 -
(d) Other non-current liabilities 16 334.73 34.73
Total non-current liabilities 1,128.45 980.81
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 17 161 1.59
(i} Trade payables 18
(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 0.03
(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 576.43 945.10
and small enterprises
(iii)Other financial liabilities 14 252.21 334.47
(b) Other current liabilities 19 28.97 26.87
{c) Provisions 15 0.16 0.22
(d) Current tax liabilities (net) 0.97 8.18
Total current liabilities 860.35 1,316.46
Total Liabilities 1,988.80 2,297.27
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 3,685.21 3,808.91

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP

Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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Pradeep Bharéava Prem Pushkar Varma

Samir R. Shah R .

Partner Director Whole-time Director

Place: Mumbai ‘

Date : April 30, 2019 guél Lvnl \atA?v\AP
Rajeel Jain Sudhir Yagnik

Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer



AMBA RIVER COKE LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2019

Rs. in crores
For the year ended For the year ended
higtes March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
I Revenue from operations 20 5,133.74 5,106.96
Il Other income 21 19.65 18.10
Il Total income (I+I) 5,153.39 5,125.06
IV Expenses:
Cost of materials consumed 3,964.72 4,001.83
Purchases of traded goods 357.10 182.03
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 22 7.43 27.88
Excise duty expense - 146.07
Employee benefits expense 23 27.40 26.05
Finance costs 24 178.61 184.76
Depreciation expense 2 1.36 1.71
Other expenses 25 343.54 292.83
Total expenses 4,880.16 4,863.16
V  Profit before tax (Il - IV) 273.23 261.90
VI Tax expense : 36
Current tax 61.46 58.37
Deferred tax 35.36 34.75
VIl Profit for the year (V - Vi) 176.41 168.78
VIl Other comprehensive income
A (i) Itemsthat will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Re-measurements of defined benefit plans 0.20 0.28
(b) Equity instrument through other comprehensive income (1.54) 5.81
(ii) Income tax related to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (0.07) (0.10)
B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) The effective portion of gains and loss on hedging 13.63 0.51
instruments in a cash flow hedge
(b) Changes in foreign currency monetary item translation 1.39 3.22
difference account (FCMITDA)
(i) Income tax related to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
{5.25) (1.29)
Total other comprehensive income (A+B) 8.36 8.43
IX Total comprehensive income for the year( VIi+VIII) 184.77 177.21
X Earnings per equity share of Re 10/- each
Basic 35 1.89 1.81
Diluted 35 1.89 1.81

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

In terms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

\w L

Samir R, Shah Pradeep Bhargava
Partner Director
Place: Mumbai
Date : April 30, 2019
Rajegv Jain

LY

Company Secretary

_’/-/.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

o Lt

Prem Pushkar Varma

Whole-time Director

g‘u(llm‘w"&ajw“

Sudhir Yagnik

Chief Financial Officer



AMBA RIVER COKE LIMITED
Statement of Cash flows for the Year ended March 31, 2019

Rs. in crores
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit before tax 273.23 261.90
Adjustments for:
Interest expense 178.61 184.76
Depreciation 1.36 1.71
Unrealised exchange loss/(gain) 1.87 12.68
Dividend income - (0.29)
Interest income (17.80) (12.97)
164.04 185.89
Operating profit before working capital changes 437.27 447.79
Adjustments for :
(Increase) / decrease in inventories 206.85 34.38
{Increase) /decrease in trade receivables (15.09) 31.96
{Increase) /decrease in other financial assets, finance lease receivables and other assets 234.40 (246.23)
{Decrease)/ increase in trade payable and other liabilities {15.02) 242.68
{Decrease)/ increase in provisions 0.39 0.20
411.53 62.99
Cash flow from operations 848.80 510.78
Income taxes paid {including interest) (68.67) (48.31)
Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 780.13 462.47
Cash flow from investing activities
Loan given (300.00) -
Payment for property ,plant & equipment including capital advances (22.81) (25.82)
Purchases of long term investments (12.00) N
Bank deposits/ Drawn not considered as cash and cash equivalents {net) {0.43) 1.9%
Repayment of loan 10.76 447.00
Interest received 14.86 .
Dividend received - 0.29
Net cash used in investing activities (B) {309.62) 423.46
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings 177.60 75.00
Repayment of borrowings (475.70) (773.39)
Proceeds from/ repayment of short-term borrowings {net) 0.02 0.22
Interest paid (176.71) (183.63)
Net cash generated from / (used) in financing activities (C ) !474.79! !881.80!
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash {4.28) 4.13
Cash and cash equivalents - opening balances 4.49 0.36
Cash and cash equivalents - closing balances 0.21 4.49
Notes :

1} Ihe cash tlow statement is prepared using the "indirect method” set out in Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”,

I1) Cash and cash equivalents presented in the statement of cash flows consist of cash on hand and unencumbered, highly liquid bank balances.

1ll) Non-cash transaction: During the year the Company has made additions to the Property, plant and equipment of Rs. 3,99 crores (previous year Rs. 12.85 crores)
specifically identified in an arrangement in the nature of lease with the holding Company.

IV) The following table disclose below changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.

Particulars Financing Cash Flows Non-Cash Changes
. Forel Fair Val Other Charges/ Asat
1st April 2018 oreign air Value erLharees/ 315t March 2019
exchange rates Adjustment Loan
Long term Borrowings Indus ind Bank 75.00 {75.00) - - - .
Long term Borrowings 1,164.60 (223.10) - - 2.69 944.19
Short term Borrowings 1.59 0.02 - - - 1.61
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 6.81 {176.71) - - 175.92 6.02
Total 1,248.00 (474.79) - - 178.61 951.82
Particulars As at Financing Cash Flows _ Non-C_ash Changes As at
. Foreign Fair Value Other Charges/
1st April 2017 . 31st March 2018
exchange rates Adjustment Loan
Long term Borrowings Indus ind Bank - 75.00 - - - 75.00
Long term Borrowings 1,365.11 (203.42) 0.66 - 2.25 1,164.60
Short term Borrowings 1.37 0.22 - - - 1,59
Other loan . (569.97) - 569,97 -
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 7.93 (183.63) - - 182.51 6.81
Total 1,374.41 (881.80) 0.66 - 754.73 1,248.00

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
i

Chartered Accountants
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Statement of changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2019

Rs. in crores

{a) Equity share capital As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
No. of Shares Amount  No. of Shares Amount
Balance at the beginning of the year 931,898,670 931.90 931,898,670 931.90
Changes in equity share capital during the year - - - -
Balance at the end of the year 931,898,670 931.90 931,898,670 931.90
{b) Other equity Rs. in crores
Reserves and Items of other comprehensive income
surplus
Foreign currency

' Retained monetary it.em Remeasurem.ents ‘ Equity Cash flow Total

Particulars earnings translation of the net defined instruments hedge
difference benefit plans through OCI
account

Opening balance as at April 1, 2017 425.37 (3.02) (0.14) (19.68) - 402.53
Profit for the year 168.78 - - - - 168.78
Other comprehensive income for the year, 5 2.11 0.18 5.81 0.33 8.43
net of tax
Closing balance as at March 31, 2018 594.15 {0.91) 0.04 (13.87) 0.33 579.74
Profit for the year 176.41 - - - - 176.41
Other comprehensive income for the year, - 0.91 0.13 (1.54) 8.86 8.36
net of tax
Closing balance as at March 31, 2019 770.56 - 0.17 (15.41) 9.19 764.51

(C) Nature of reserves:

{1} Retained earnings: Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to reserves and dividend distributions to
the shareholders.
(1} Cash tlow hedge: The cash tlow hedge Is the cumulative effective portion ot gains or fosses arising on changes in fair value of designated portion of

hedging instruments entered into for cash flow hedges. The gains or losses arising thereon are transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss on
settlement.

{11} Foreign currency monetary item translation difference account: Exchange differences on translation of long term foreign currency monetary items
(other than depreciable assets) are transferred to foreign currency monetary item translation difference account and amortised over the balance life of
such assets / liabilities.

(IV) Re-measurement of net defined benefit plans: It includes impact of actuarial gains and losses on the funded obligation due to change in financial
assumptions, change in demographic assumption, experience adjustments, etc. recognised through other comprehensive income.

(V) Equity instruments through OCI: The Company has selected to recognise changes in the fair value of instruments in equity securities in other
comprehensive income. These changes are accumulated within the FVTOCI equity investments reserve within equity. The Company will transfer amount
from this reserve to retained earning when the relevant equity securities are derecognised.

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP

Chartered Accountants

w\‘(\) i VRt e

Pradeep Bhargava Prem Pushkar Varma
Samir R. Shah Director Whole-time Director

Partner Q}?‘y gvol Lo ,7#? tan —

Place: Mumbai
Date : April 30, 2019

Rajeev J3in sudhir Yagnik
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2019

1A. General Information
Amba River Coke Limited {“the Company”) is unlisted public company incorporated on 25 September 1997 under
the Companies Act, 1956 with its registered office located at JSW Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East),
Mumbai, Maharashtra. Principal place of business of the Company is located at Dolvi, Maharashtra. The non-
convertible debentures issued by the Company have been listed on Bombay Stock Exchange.

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of JSW Steel Limited. The main object of the Company is to
manufacture coke and pellet from its facilities located at Dolvi and supply them to JSW Steel Limited (Parent)
under the long-term supply arrangements.

A. Applicability of new and revised Ind AS:
. Amendments to Ind AS that are notified and adopted by the Company

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs on 28 March 2018 vide the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2018 (the “Rules”) notified new revenue standard Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, and
other amendments to certain existing Ind AS effective from the period beginning on or after April 1, 2018.

a. The Company has adopted Ind AS 115, with the date of initial application of April 1, 2018 following the cumulative
effective method — i.e. by recognising the cumulative effect of initially applying Ind AS 115 as an adjustment to
the opening balance of equity as at April 1, 2018. Therefore, the comparative information has not been restated
and continues to be reported under erstwhile ind AS 18 ‘Revenue Recognition’ and Ind AS 11 ‘Construction
contracts’.

Ind AS 115 modifies the determination of how much revenue to recognise, and when, and introduces a single
principle based five-step model to be applied to all the contracts with the customers. Ind AS 115 replaces the
separate models for goods, services and construction contracts currently included in Ind AS 18 ‘Revenue
Recognition’ and Ind AS 11 ‘Construction contracts’.

As per Ind AS 115, the Company recognises revenue when control over the promised goods or services is
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods and services. In case of the Company, the timing for recognition of revenue
under Ind AS 115 coincides with the revenue recognised as per Ind AS 18 following principle of transfer of risk and
rewards of ownership in the goods upon its delivery to the customer. Accordingly, the adoption of Ind AS 115 has
no material impact on the opening balance of equity as at April 1, 2018.

b. The application of Appendix B, (Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Considerations) to Ind AS 21, “The
Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates” with effect from April 1, 2018 does not have any impact, as the
Company used to determine the exchange rate of the date on which advance consideration in foreign currency
been received or paid for the purpose of initial recognition of related asset, expense or income.

ll. New standard issued but not yet effective

a. Ind AS 116, Leases: On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 116, Leases. Ind AS 116 will
replace the existing leases Standard, Ind AS 17 Leases, and related Interpretations. The Standard sets out the
principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract i.e.
the lessee and the lessor. Ind AS 116 introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise
assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than twelve months, unless the underlying asset is of low value.
Currently, operating lease expenses are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. The Standard also contains
enhanced disclosure requirements for lessees. ind AS 116 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in Ind AS 17.
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As a practical expedient, it is permitted to not apply this standard to contracts that were not previously identified as
containing lease applying Ind AS 17.

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 116 is annual periods beginning on or after April 01, 2019. The standard permits
two possible methods of transition:

i.  Full retrospective — Retrospectively to each prior period presented applying Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors

ii. Modified retrospective — Retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of initially applying the Standard recognized at
the date of initial application.

Under modified retrospective approach, the lessee records the lease liability as the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the right of use asset either as:

i. Its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement date, but discounted at lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application or

ii. An amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments related to
that lease recognized under Ind AS 17 immediately before the date of initial application.

On completion of evaluation of the effect of adoption of Ind AS 116, the Company is proposing to use the ‘Modified
Retrospective Approach’ for transitioning to Ind AS 116, and take the cumulative adjustment to retained earnings, on the
date of initial application (April 1, 2019). Accordingly, comparatives for the year ended March 31, 2019 will not be
retrospectively adjusted. The Company has elected certain available practical expedients on transition.

The impact upon adoption of Ind AS 116 is not expected to be material.

b. Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments: On March 30, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
has notified Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments, which is to be applied while performing
the determination of taxable profit (or loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there
is uncertainty over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12. According to the appendix, companies need to determine
the probability of the relevant tax authority accepting each tax treatment, or group of tax treatments, that the
companies have used or plan to use in their income tax filing which has to be considered to compute the most likely
amount or the expected value of the tax treatment when determining taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax
losses, unused tax credits and tax rates.

The effect on adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C is not expected to be material in the Financial Statements.

c.  Amendment to Ind AS 12 — Income taxes: On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to the
guidance in Ind AS 12, ‘Income Taxes’, in connection with accounting for dividend distribution taxes. The amendment
clarifies that an entity shall recognise the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive
income or equity according to where the entity originally recognised those past transactions or events.

The amendment will be effective from April 01, 2019. The Company is currently evaluating the effect of this
amendment on the financial statements.

d.  Amendment to Ind AS 19 — plan amendment, curtailment or settlement- On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate
Affairs issued amendments to Ind AS 19, ‘Employee Benefits’, in connection with accounting for plan amendments,
curtailments and settlements.

The amendments require an entity:
i. to use updated assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the period
after a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement; and
ii. torecognise in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, any reduction in a surplus,
even if that surplus was not previously recognised because of the impact of the asset ceiling.

v X
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1B.

The impact of adoption of this amendment is not expected to be material,

Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company which comprise the Balance Sheets as at 31st March, 2019, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statements of Cash Flows and the Statements of Changes in Equity for the year
ended 31st March, 2019, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(together hereinafter referred to as “Financial Statements”) have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies {Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter (“Ind AS”), the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) (to the extent notified) and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (SEBI}. The Financial Statements have been approved by the Board of Directors in its meeting held
on April 30, 2019.

Basis of preparation and presentation
The Financial Statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees ('INR') and all values are rounded to the nearest crore,
except otherwise indicated.

Significant Accounting policies

Revenue recognition
Sale of goods

The Company recognises revenue when control over the promised goods or services is transferred to the customer at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
and services.

The Company recognises revenue generally at the point in time when the products are delivered to customer or when
it is delivered to a carrier for export sale, which is the point of time when the control over product is transferred to the
customer.

In contracts where freight is arranged by the Company and recovered from the customers, the same is treated as a
separate performance obligation and revenue is recognised when such freight services are rendered.

Revenue is adjusted for variable consideration such as discounts, rebates, refunds, credits, price concessions,
incentives, performance bonuses, or other similar items in a contract when they are highly probable to be provided.

The amount of revenue excludes any amount collected on behalf of third parties or government such as goods and
service tax levied on sales.

Dividend and interest income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive payment has been
established.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of

.

LL.

the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Il. Leasing
Arrangements in the nature of lease

An arrangement comprising a transaction or series of related transactions that does not take the legal form of a
lease but conveys the right to use the asset in return for a payment or series of payments is evaluated at its
inception to assess whether fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and
whether it also conveys the right to use such asset or assets. In case of the arrangement which is identified to be in
the nature of lease, the payments and other consideration under the arrangement are separated at the inception
of the arrangement into those for lease and those for other elements.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Company as a lessor

Amount due from the lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of the Company’s
net investment in the leases. Lease receipts are apportioned between finance income and reduction of the
revenue so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the finance lease receivable.
Finance lease income is allocated to the accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on
the Company’s net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

The Company as a lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets of the Company at their fair value at the
inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability
to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments under an operating lease shall be recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period
in which they are incurred.

lll. Foreign currencies
The functional currency of the Company is determined on the basis of the primary economic environment in which
it operates. The functional currency of the Company is Indian National Rupee (INR).

The transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which
they arise except for:

* exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future
productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to
interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;

» exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to hedge certain foreign currency risks (see below

the policy on hedge accounting in XII {f}; and

MUMBAI ""]
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Vi.

» exchange difference arising on settlement / restatement of long-term foreign currency monetary items
recognized in the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016 prepared under previous GAAP, are
capitalized as a part of the depreciable fixed assets to which the monetary item relates and depreciated over
the remaining useful life of such assets. If such monetary items do not relate to acquisition of depreciable
fixed assets, the exchange difference is amortised over the maturity period / upto the date of settlement of
such monetary item, whichever is earlier and charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. The un-amortised
exchange difference is carried under other equity as “Foreign currency monetary item translation difference
account” net of tax effect thereon, where applicable.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

The Company determines the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation as the actual borrowing costs
incurred on that borrowing during the period less any interest income earned on temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets, to the extent that an entity borrows funds specifically
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. In case if the Company borrows generally and uses the funds for
obtaining a qualifying asset, borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation are determined by applying a capitalisation
rate to the expenditures on that asset.

The Company suspends capitalisation of borrowing costs during extended periods in which it suspends active
development ol a yudlilying assel,

Government grants
Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the
conditions attached to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic basis over the periods in
which the Company recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

Employee benefits

a. Short-term employee benefits:

The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services
rendered by employees are recognised as an expense during the period when the employees render the
services.

b. Long term employee benefits:

Compensated absences which are not expected to be availed or encashed within twelve months after the end of
the period in which the employee renders the related service are recognised as a liability as at the Balance Sheet
date on the basis of actuarial valuation using projected unit credit method.

c. Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits

Defined contribution plans:

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays specified
contributions towards Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance and Pension Scheme. The Company’s
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contribution is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which the
eligible employee renders the related service.

Defined benefit plans:

The Company pays gratuity to the employees whoever has completed five years of service with the Company at
the time of resignation/ superannuation. The gratuity is paid @ 15 days salary for the every completed year of
service as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Company’s liabilities towards gratuity and other post-
employment benefit is determined on yearly basis using the Projected Unit Credit Method and spread over the
period during which the benefit is expected to be derived from employees’ services. Re-measurement of
defined benefit plans in respect of post-employment and other long term benefits are charged to the Other
Comprehensive Income.

VIl. Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. Income tax expense is
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent it relates to items directly recognized in equity
or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax is the amount of tax payable based on the taxable profit for the year as determined in accordance with
the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Current tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates and
laws that are enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recavered.

Minimum Alternate Tax {MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in the form
of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the
Company will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an asset in the Balance Sheet when it is
highly probable that future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the Company.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Vill. Property, plant and equipment
The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates,
import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), directly
attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use, including relevant borrowing costs for

_ qualifying assets and any expected costs of decommissioning.
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Cost of major inspection/overhauling is recognised in the carrying amount of the item of property, plant and
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. Any remaining carrying amount of the cost of
the previous inspection/overhauling (as distinct from physical parts) is de-recognised.

Properties in the course of construction are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss, as capital work in
progress. Upon completion, such properties are transferred to the appropriate categories of property, plant and
equipment and the depreciation commences.

Where an obligation (legal or constructive) exists to dismantle or remove an asset or restore a site to its former
condition at the end of its useful life, the present value of the estimated cost of dismantling, removing or restoring
the site is capitalized along with the cost of acquisition or construction upon completion and a corresponding
liability is recognized.

Property, plant and equipment except freehold land held for use in the production, supply or administrative
purposes, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Freehold or
Leasehold land is stated at historical cost, and not depreciated. Leasehold Land with an option in the lease deed to
purchase on outright basis after a certain period at no additional cost, is not amortized.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Depreciation

Depreciation commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. Depreciable amount for assets is the
cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated residual value. Depreciation is recognized
so as to write off the cost of assets {other than freehold land and properties under construction) less their residual
values over their useful lives, using straight-line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule I to the
Companies Act, 2013.

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates
them separately based on their specific useful lives.

Freehold land is not depreciated. Leasehold land is amortized over the period of the lease, except where Leasehold
land is acquired by the Company, with an option in the lease deed, entitling the Company to purchase on outright
basis after a certain period at no additional cost is not amortized.

Major overhaul costs are depreciated over the estimated life of the economic benefit derived from the overhaul.
The carrying amount of the remaining previous overhaul cost is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss if the
next overhaul is undertaken earlier than the previously estimated life of the economic benefit.

The estimated useful lives, residual value and depreciation method are reviewed annually and, if expectations
differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate on a prospective
basis.

Impairment of Property, plant and equipment

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or
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otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Any reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is limited to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined if no impairment loss had previously been
recognised.

X. Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined on
weighted average basis.

Cost of raw materials includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost of finished goods and work in progress include cost of direct materials and labour and
a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity but excluding borrowing costs.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make the sale.

Xl Provisions, contingencies and commitments
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive), as a result of past
events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources, that can be reliably estimated, will be required to settle
such an obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount
is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a
third party, a receivable is recognised as asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the
amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is-
a) a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity; or
b) apresent obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because:
i) itis not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation; or
ii) the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.
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A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
entity.

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for completion of assets.
Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each reporting period.

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from a
contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under the contract.

XIl.  Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments.

{(a) Financial assets:
(i) Initial recognition and measurement:

All financial assets are initially recognised at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets, which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are adjusted to the fair value
on initial recognition. Purchase and sale of financial assets are recognised using trade date accounting.

(i) Subsequent measurement:

Financial assets carried at amortised cost - A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it
is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows
and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) - A financial asset is measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of
the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) - A financial asset which is not classified in any of
the above categories are fair valued through profit or loss.

Financial assets, other than equity instruments, are subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of both:

(a) the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and

(b) the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Equity Investments:

All equity investments are measured at fair value, with value changes recognised in Statement of Profit and
Loss, except for those equity investments for which the Company has elected to present the value changes
in ‘Other Comprehensive Income’.

(i) Impairment:

The Company recognises a loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECL) on financial assets that are
measured at amortised cost and at FVOCI. The credit loss is difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to
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(iv)

receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate. This is assessed on an
individual or collective basis after considering all reasonable and supportable including that which is
forward-looking.

The Company’s trade receivables or contract revenue receivables do not contain significant financing
component and loss allowance on trade receivables is measured at an amount equal to life time expected
losses i.e. expected cash shortfall, being simplified approach for recognition of impairment loss allowance.

Under simplified approach, the Company does not track changes in credit risk. Rather it recognizes
impairment loss allowance based on the lifetime ECL at each reporting date right from its initial recognition.
The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade
receivables.

The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade
receivable and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

For financial assets other than trade receivables, the Company recognises 12-months expected credit losses
for all originated or acquired financial assets if at the reporting date the credit risk of the financial asset has
not increased significantly since its initial recognition. The expected credit losses are measured as lifetime
expected credit losses if the credit risk on financial asset increases significantly since its initial recognition. If,
in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer significant
increase in credit risks since initial recognition, then the Company reverts to recognizing impairment loss
allowance based on 12 months ECL. The impairment losses and reversals are recognised in Statement of
Profit and Loss. For equity instruments and financial assets measured at FVTPL, there is no requirement for
Impalrment Lesting.

Derecognition:

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in
the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in Statement of Profit
and Loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss on
disposal of that financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Company retains an option to
repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Company allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial
asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference
between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the
consideration received for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss if such

gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss on disposal of that
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allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the
basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

{(b) Financial liabilities and equity instruments:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Classification as debt or equity:

Debt and equity instruments issued by a Company entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments:

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a Company entity are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Company's own equity instruments.

Initial recognition and measurement:

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and in case of loans net of directly attributable cost.
Fees of recurring nature are directly recognised in profit or loss as finance cost.

Subsequent measurement:

Financial liabilities are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other
payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair
value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Derecognition:

Financial liabilities are derecognised when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. An exchange with a lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms
is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial
liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability (whether or not
attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in Statement of
Profit and Loss.

(c} Derivative financial instruments:

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward foreign exchange contracts, to hedge its

foreign currency risks.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered irto and are

subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is

recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a

hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the

hedging relationship and the nature of the hedged item.
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(d) Offsetting of financial instruments:

()

(f)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Fair value measurement:

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

i) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
i) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Compadny uses valualion technlgues that are appropriate In the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobservable

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.

Hedge accounting

The Company designates certain hedging instruments, which include derivatives in respect of foreign currency,
as either cash flow hedge or fair value hedge. Hedges of foreign currency risk on firm commitments are
accounted for as cash flow hedges.
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At the inception of the hedge relationship, the entity documents the relationship between the hedging
instrument and the hedged item, along with its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Company
documents whether the hedging instrument is highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of
the hedged item attributable to hedged risk.

(i) Fair value hedges

Changes in fair value of the designated portion of derivatives that qualify as fair value hedges are recognized in
profit or loss immediately, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are
attributable to the hedged risk. The change in the fair value of the designated portion of hedging instrument and
the change in the hedged item attributable to hedged risk are recognized in profit or loss in the line item relating
to the hedged item.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or
when it no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. The fair value adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged
item arising from the hedged risk is amortised to profit or loss from that date.

(i) Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is
recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of cash flow hedging reserve. The
gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity relating to effective
portion as described above are reclassified to profit or loss in the periods when the hedged item affects profit or
loss, in the same line as the recognised hedged item. However, when the hedged forecast transaction results in
the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial liability, such gains or losses are transferred from equity
(but not as a reclassification adjustment) and included in the initial measurement of the cost of the non-financial
asset or non-financial liability.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or
when it no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. Any gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately
recognised in profit or loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss
accumulated in equity is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

6. Key sources of estimation uncertainty and critical accounting judgements
In the course of applying the policies outlined in all notes under section D above, the Company is required to

make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future period, if the revision affects current and future period.
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1C.

1)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

i} Provisions and liabilities

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future
outflow of funds resulting from past operations or events that can reasonably be estimated. The timing of
recognition requires application of judgement to existing facts and circumstances which may be subject to
change. The amounts are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

ii) Contingencies
In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against

the Company. Potential liabilities that are possible but not probable of crystalising or are very difficult to
quantify reliably are treated as contingent liabilities. Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not
recognized.

iii) Fair value measurements

When the fair values of financial assets or financial liabilities recorded or disclosed in the financial
statements cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured
using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair
values. Judgements include consideration of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.

iv) Taxes
Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Critical accounting judgement

Separating payments of lease from the other considerations

If an arrangement contains a lease, the parties to the arrangement shall apply the requirements of Ind AS 17
to the lease element. Therefore, the Company is required to separate the considerations under arrangement
into those for the lease and for other elements.

Accordingly, the Company has in respect of its arrangements for Coke plant and Pellet Plant has recognized the
finance lease receivable at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease by discounting aggregate of
minimum lease payments and the estimated unguaranteed residual value, at the interest rate implicit in the
lease. The total consideration for the period less payments attributed towards finance lease receivable and
imputed finance income are regarded as consideration for elements other than lease.
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Note 2
Property, plant and equipment

Rs. in crores
FRRtiCUISE Buildings L Vehicles Office equipment Total

fixtures

Cost / deemed cost
At April 01, 2017 30.61 0.67 1.22 0.49 32.99
Additions - 0.01 0.20 0.14 0.35
Other adjustment (0.32) - - - (0.32)
At March 31, 2018 30.29 0.68 1.42 0.63 33.02
Additions - 0.29 - - 0.29
At March 31, 2019 30.29 0.97 1.42 0.63 33.31
Accumulated depreciation
At April 01, 2017 1.44 0.12 0.22 0.27 2.05
Depreciation expense 1.06 0.23 0.19 0.23 1.71
At March 31, 2018 2.50 0.35 0.41 0.50 3.76
Depreciation expense 1.06 0.08 0.18 0.04 1.36
At March 31, 2019 3.56 0.43 0.59 0.54 5.12
Carrying Value
As at March 31, 2019 26.73 0.54 0.83 0.09 28.19
As at March 31, 2018 27.79 0.33 1.01 0.13 29.26
Useful Life of the assets (years) 30 5-10 8 3-10 -
Method of depreciation SLM SLM SLM SLM E
Notes:
a) Certain property plant and equipment are pledged against borrowings (Refer note 13 and 17),
Note 3
Investments (non-current)

Rs. in crores
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Investment at fair value through other comprehensive income (fully paid)
Quoted-Equity share
72,10,640 (PY 57,54,640) fully paid equity shares of Rs. 10/- each of JSW Energy Limited 52.35 41.89
Investment at amortised cost (unquoted)
National Savings Certificates 0.03 0.03
(Pledged with Deputy Director of Mines, Odisha)
Total investment carrying value 52.38 41.92
Quuted
Aggregate book value 52.35 41.89
Aggregate market value 52.35 41.89
Unquoted
Aggregate carrying value 0.03 0.03
Note 4
Finance lease receivables

Rs. in crores
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Finance lease receivables (Refer note 28 and 34) 2,119.98 2,204.03
Less : Current portion of finance lease receivables 100.18 88.03
Non-current portion of finance lease receivables 2,019.80 2,116.00
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Note 5
Loans
Rs. in crores
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Non-current Current Non-current Current
Loans
to related parties (Refer note 34)# - 404.94 52.84 58.81
to other body corporate - 16.63 11.18 11.81
Total - 421.57 64.02 70.62
Considered good, secured - - E -
Considered good, unsecured 421.57 64.02 70.62
Which have significant increase in credit risk - - - -
Credit impaired - -
# For business purpose
Note 6
Other financial assets
Rs. in crores
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Non-current Current Non-current Current
Security deposits 3.61 2,99 191 102.69
Incentive receivables (Value added tax/ GST) 95.81 117.97 92.71 309.57
Other receivables - 6.38 . -
Foreign currency forward contract designated in hedge accounting
relationship - - 1.30
Commodity forward contracts designated in hedge accounting relationship
(refer note 29 (E }) - 44.57 - 0.51
Total 99.42 171.91 94.62 414.07
Note 7
Other assets
Rs. in crores
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Non-current Current Non-current Current
Capital advances 1.28 - 0.83 -
Indirect tax balances with government authorities 98.77 125.10 - 138.25
Prepaymenl and uthers 10.01 - 10.41 -
Advances to suppliers - 29.26 - 17.29
Prepaid expenses - 6.01 - 6.94
Total 110.06 160.37 11.24 162.48
Note 8
Inventories (at lower of cost and net realisable value)
Rs. in crores
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Raw materials (Including stock in transit as at March 31, 2019: Rs, 148.22 crores, March 31, 2018 392.06 604.57
Rs. 181.50 crores)
Work-in-progress 6.83 7.62
Semi-finished/finished goods 2.89 9.53
Consumable stores and spares {Including stock in transit as at March 31, 2019: Rs. 2.82 crores , 43.86 30.77
March 31, 2018 Rs. 1.40 crores)
Total 445,64 652.49

Inventories have been pledged as security against certain bank borrowing of the Company. (Refer note 17)
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Cost of inventories recognised as expenses Rs. In crores
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Cost of materials consumed 3,964.72 4,001.83
Purchase of traded goods 357.10 182.03
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 7.43 27.88
Stores and spares consumed 55.23 56.93
Total 4,384.48 4,268.67
Note 9
Trade receivables(Refer note 34)

Rs. in crores

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Unsecured, considered good 50.99 35.90
Total 50.99 35.90
Considered good, secured - -
Considered good, unsecured 50.99 35.90
Which have significant increase in credit risk - -
Credit impaired - -
Ageing of past due trade receivables

Rs. in crores

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
31-90 days - 0.02
91-180 days - -
Total - 0.02

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officer of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person nor any trade or other
receivable are due from firm or private Companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

The credit period on sales of goods ranges from 30 to 90 days generally without security. Trade receivables is mainly due from related parties. Interest on
overdue trade receivable is generally levied at 9 - 10 % p.a. There has been no significant change in the credit quality of past due receivables.

The Company does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances nor does it have a legal right of offset against any amounts

owed by the Company to the counterparty.

Trade receivables have been given as collateral towards borrowings (refer note 17)

Note 10A
Cash and cash equivalents

Rs. in crores
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Balance with banks in current accounts 0.20 0.26
Cash on hand 0.01 0.02
Cheque on hand - 4.21
Total 0.21 4.49
Note 10B
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Rs, in crores
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

Earmarked balances
Margin deposits
Total

7.45

7.02

7.45

7.02

Balance with bank held as margin money for security towards DSRA (Debt Service Reserve Account) with respect to facility availed from bank.
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Note 11
Equity share capital
Rs. in crores
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(a ) Authorised:
1,300,000,000 Equity share of par value of Rs 10 each 1,300.00 1,300.00
TOTAL 1,300.00 1,300.00
(b } Issued, subscribed and paid up:
931,898,670 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 931.90 931.90
TOTAL 931.90 931.90
(¢ ) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year:
Equity share:
Outstanding at the beginning of the year
Number of shares 931,898,670 931,898,670
Amount (Rs.in crores) 931.90 931.90
Issued during the year
Number of shares . -
Amount (Rs.in crores) - -
Outstanding at the end of the year
Number of shares 931,898,670 931,898,670
Amount (Rs.in crores) 931.90 931.90

(d JTerms of / rights attached to equity shares

The Company has a single class of equity shares. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders
are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

(e }Sharehelders holding more than 5% shares in the Ci y is set out below:

p

Equity share As at
March 31, 2018
No. of Shares No. of Shares %
ISW Steel Limited (the holding company) and its nominees 931,898,670 931,898,670 100%
Nule 12
Other equity
Rs. in crores

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Retained earnings 770.56 594.15
Effective portion of cash flow hedges 9.19 033
Foreign currency monetary item translation difference account (FCMITDA) - (0.91}
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit plans 0.17 0.04
Equity instruments through other comprehensive income (15.41) (13.87)
Total 764.51 579.74
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Note 13
Borrowings
Rs. in crores
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Non-current Current Non-current Current
Secured
Non-convertible debentures
8.75% Non-convertible debenture of Rs. 10 lacs each 180.00 - 180.00
8.65% Non-convertible debenture of Rs. 10 lacs each 120.00 . 120.00
Term loans from banks
Rupee term loans 458.28 188.42 513.50 144,02
Foreign currency term loan - - 133.20 79.10
Unsecured
Rupee term loan - . - 75.00
Unamortized upfront fees on borrowings (1.40) (1.11) {3.55) (1.67)
Total 756.88 187.31 943,15 296.45

(1) Details of security:

A. The 8.75% NCDs aggregating to Rs. 180 crores are secured by way of first ranking charge on all movable and immovable fixed assets both present and
future and on lease hold rights over immovable property of pellet project situated at Village JuiBapuji, Taluka Alibaug, District Raigad, Maharashtra,

B. The 8.65% NCDs aggregating to Rs. 120 crores are secured secured by way of first ranking charge on all movabie and immovable fixed assets both present
and future and on lease hold rights over immovable property of pellet project situated at Village JuiBapuji, Taluka Alibaug, District Raigad, Maharashtra,

C. Rupee term loans from banks are secured as under:

(i) Rupee term loan amounting to Rs. 346.69 crores (previous year 271.79 crores) is secured by first ranking charge / mortgage / collateral on all movable
and immovable fixed assets both present and future and on lease hold rights over immovable property of coke oven project situated at Village JuiBapuji,
Taluka Alibag, District Raigad, Maharashtra.

(i) Rupee term loan amounting to Rs. 300.01 crores {previous year Rs. 385.72 crores) is secured by first ranking charge / mortgage / security interest on all
movable and immovable fixed assets both present and future and on lease hold rights over immovable property of pellet project situated at Village JuiBapuji,
Taluka Alibag, District Raigad, Maharashtra.

(iii}) 304,373,882 equity shares of the Company held by JSW Steel Limited, holding Company are pledge against rupee term loan as disclosed under (i) and (i)
above aggregating to Rs. 646.70 crores (previous year Rs. 657.52 crores) .

D. Foreign currency term loan was secured by first ranking charge / mortgage on all movable and immovable fixed assets both present and future and on
lease hold rights over immovable property of coke oven project situated at Village JuiBapuji, Taluka Alibag, District Raigad, Maharashtra.

(1) Terms of repayment:

(i) Terms of redemption of Non-Convertible Debentures {NCDs) are as under:
(a) The 8.75% Secured NCDs of Rs. 1,000,000 each aggregating Rs. 180 crores is redeemable on 10-02-2022.
(b) The 8.65% Secured NCDs of Rs. 1,000,000 each aggregating Rs. 120 crores is redeemable on 12-05-2020.

(il Rupee term loan from banks of Rs. 646.70 crores is repayable as under:
(a) Rs. 300.01 crores is repayable in 14 quarterly instalments of Rs. 21.429 crores from 30.06.2019 to 30.9.2022.
(b) Rs. 308.09 crores is repayable in 12 quarterly instalment of Rs 25.675 from 30.06.2019 to 31.03.2022.
(c) Rs. 38.60 crores is repayable in 4 quarterly instalments of Rs. 9.65 crores from 30-06-2022 to 31-03-2023

i
%
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Note 14
Other financial liabilities
Rs. in crores
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Current Current
Current maturities of long term borrowing (Refer note 13) 188.42 298.12
Unamortized upfront fees on borrowing (1.11) (1.67)
Total 187.31 296.45
Rent and other deposits 0.07 0.17
Retention money for capital projects 10.19 19.55
Payables for capital projects
Other than acceptance 10.08 11.49
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 6.02 6.81
Commodity forward contracts designated in hedge accounting relationship 30.42 -
Foreign currency forward contracts designated in hedge accounting relationship 8.12 -
Total 252.21 334.47
Note 15
Provisions
Rs. in crores
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Non-current Current Non-current Current
Provision for gratuity (Refer note 33b(i){a)) 2.14 0.06 1.95 0.12
Provision for compensated absences 1.04 0.10 0.98 0.10
Total 3.18 0.16 2.93 0.22
Note 16
Other liabilities (non-current)
Rs. in crores
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Export obligation deferred income # 34.73 34.73
Advance from a customer (refer note 34) 300.00 -
Total 334.73 34.73

# Represents Government assistance in the form of duty benefit availed under export promotion capital goods (EPCG) scheme on purchase of property, plant
B aquiprnents vieuunied Tur us Guuerinenl grunt und recognised s inesma upsn fulfitment of coruspuinding exputl ubligalion {relur note 28 (B} (1))

Note 17
Borrowings (current)
Rs. in crores
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Working capital loan from bank (secured)

Rupee loan 1.61 1.59
Total 1.61 1.59

Working capital loan of Rs 1.61 crores (March 31, 2018: Rs 1.59 crores ) is secured by :

{i) pari passu first charge by way of hypothecation of stocks of raw materials, finished goods, work-in-progress, consumable stores and spares and book
debts / receivables of the Company, both present and future.

(ii} pari passu second charge on movable properties and immovable properties forming part of the fixed/blocked assets of the Company, both present and
future,
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Note 18
Trade payables

Rs. in crores
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Acceptances 185.34 163.61
Other than acceptances (refer note 27A) 391.09 781.52
Total 576.43 945.13
- Micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 27A} - 0.03
- Other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 576.43 945.10

Acceptances include credit availed by the Company from banks for payment to suppliers for raw materials purchased by the Company. The arrangements are
interest-bearing and are payable within one year.
Other than acceptances payables are normally settled with 1 to 180 days payments terms.

Note 19
Other current liabilities

Rs. in crores
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Statutory liabilities 28.94 26.77
Other payables 0.03 0.10
Total 28.97 26.87
Note 20

Revenue from operations

Rs. in crores

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

For the year ended
March 31, 2018

Sales of products (refer note 34)

Sale of manufactured goods 4,442.01 4,482.21

Sale of traded goods 361.04 185.98
A 4,803.05 4,668.19

Other operating revenue

GST / VAT Incentive 4 44,73 143.28

Interest on finance lease receivable 285.96 295.49
B 330.69 438.77

Total A+D 5,133.71 8,108.76

# In terms of the ‘Package Scheme of Incentives 2007’ of the Government of Maharashtra, the Company is eligible for subsidy in the form of refund of state
taxes (VAT) on sales made from its plants located at Dolvi, Maharashtra. The Government, vide its resolution dated December 20, 2018 on modalities for
sanction and disbursement of the refund of such taxes under the new GST regime, excluded sales made to certain related parties from the ambit of the
Scheme. Subsequently, vide government resolution dated March 8, 2019, it was clarified that sales to certain category of related parties are eligible to avail
the subsidy in form of refund of State GST if finished product(s) of one unit is raw material / input to production process for the purchaser unit, and the
purchaser unit carries out further value addition / processing, which amounts to ‘manufacture’ as defined in para 2(72) of the CGST Act, 2017. The
transactions between the Company and its related parties fall under the aforesaid category. Accordingly, the Company has continued to recognize the

subsidy aggregating to Rs. 44.73 crores for the year ended March 31, 2019, (Rs. 67.80 crore for the year ended March 31, 2018).

The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 with the date of initial application of April 01, 2018 by following the cumulative effective method. The application of
Ind AS 115 did not have significant impact on the opening equity as at April 01, 2018 and on the Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended March 31,

2019.
Particulars Tonnes Rs. in crores Tonnes Rs. in crores
Quantity Value Quantity Value
Coke 1,045,878 2,345.27 1,055,173 2,104.95
Pellst 2,656,464 1,791.84 3,418,530 2,215.18
Pellet conversion 1,367,721 188.20 761,485 104.78
Sale of traded goods 249,815 361.04 122,020 185,98
Others - 116.70 - 57.30
Total 5,319,878 4,803.05 5,357,208 4,668.19
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AMBA RIVER COKE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements

The Company has assessed and determined the following categories for disaggregation of revenue:

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Revenue from contracts with customer - Sale of products {including freight income) 4,803.05 4,668.19
Other operating revenue - -
Total revenue from contracts with customers 4,803.05 4,668.19
Within india 4,803.05 4,668.19
Qutside India = &
Total revenue from contracts with customers 4,803.05 4,668.19

Timing of revenue recognition

At a point in time 4,803.05 4,668.1%
Over a period of time - d
Total revenue from contracts with customers 4,803.05 4,668.19

Revenue from operations for periods up to June 30, 2017 includes excise duty, which is discontinued effectively July 01, 2017 upon implementation of Goods
and Service Tax (GST) in India. In accordance with 'Ind AS 115, Revenue', GST is not included in revenue from operation. in view of the aforesaid restructuring
of indirect taxes, revenue from operation for the year ended March 31, 2019 are not comparable to the corresponding previous period.

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Trade receivables 50.99 35.90

Contract liabilities (Advance from a customer) 300.00 -

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days.

Out of the total contract liabilities outstanding as on March 31, 2019 entire amount will be recognised as revenue from year beginning April 01, 2020.

Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price:

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Revenue as per contracted price 4,822.83 4,695.12
Adjustments
Discount 19.78 26.93
Revenue from contract with customers 4,803.05 4,668.19

Performance obligation

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the goods and payment is generally due within 30 to 90 days from delivery.

Note 21
Other income

Rs. in crores

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

For the year ended
March 31, 2018

Interest income earned on financial assets that are not designated at FVTPL

Interest income on overdue receivables 0.72 -
Other interest income {Refer Note 34) 18.43 17.31
Miscellaneous income 0.50 0.50
Dividend income from equity investments designated at FVTOCI - 0.29
Total 19.65 18.10
Note 22
Changes in inventories of semi finished / finished goods and work in progress
Rs. in crores
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Opening Stock :
Semi-finished/finished goods 9.53 40.09
Work-in-progress 7.62 7.61
A 17.15 47.70
Closing Stock:
Semi-finished/finished goods (2.89) (9.53)
Work-in-progress (6.83) (7.62)
8 (9.72) (17.15)
C (A+B) 7.43 30.55
Excise duty on stock of finished goods {net) D - (2.67)
Total C+D 7.43 27.88

Mt 15.1511\!
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AMBA RIVER COKE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements

Note 23
Employee benefits expense

Rs. in crores

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Salaries and wages 22.44 21.74
Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer note 33 } 1.43 1.39
Staff welfare expenses 3.53 2.92
Total 27.40 26.05
Note 24

Finance costs

Rs. in crores

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Interest:
Borrowings 73.83 85.64
Non convertible debentures 26.31 26.27
Advance from customer and creditor (Refer note 34 ) 38.73 53.37
Others 16.26 7.99
Other borrowing costs 23.48 11.49
Total 178.61 184.76

Note 25

Other expenses

Rs. in crores

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Stores and spares consumed 55.23 56.93
Power and fuel 175.33 168.34
Rent 0.51 0.53
Repairs and maintenance
Plant and equipment 46.54 42.66
Buildings 177 1.19
Insurance 1.76 1.38
Rates and taxes 3.35 1.95
Carriage and freight 1.72 0.02
Legal and professional fees 1.58 1.07
CSR expenditure* 4,51 2.83
Payment to auditors {refer note below} 0.75 1.31
Miscellaneous expenses 7.29 4.77
Net loss on foreign currency transactions and translation # 30.33 6.20
Loss on sale of fixed assets {net) 0.59 -
Amortisation of Foreign currency monetary item translation difference account 12.28 3.65
Total 343.54 292.83
Note :
Auditor remuneration (excluding service tax/ GST):
Rs. in crores
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2018
As audit fees (including limited review) 0.66 0.84
For tax audit fees 0.05 0.05
For certification and other services 0.03 0.41
Out of pocket expenses 0.01 0.01
Total 0.75 131
#including loss on foreign currency forwad contract designated in hedge accounting relationship Rs. 8.12 crore (March 31,2018 gain of Rs. 1.30 crore)
* Corporate social responsibility Rs. in crores

Particulars

For the year ended

March 31, 2019

For the year ended

March 31, 2018

(a) Gross amount required and spent by the Company during the year

(i) On construction / acquisition of any asset

{ii) On purpose other than stated in {i) above
{b) Amount actually spent on CSR activities

(i) On construction / acquisition of any asset

(ii) On purpose other than stated in (i) above
{ c) Amount yet to be spent during the year

{i) On construction / acquisition of any asset

{ii) On purpose other than stated in (i) above

2.77

2.83




AMBA RIVER COKE LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements

Note 26

Contingent liabilities and commitments

Rs. in crores

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

Contingent liabilities

Guarantees 13.23 9.89
Disputed claims/levies (including interest, if any)

Custom duty 277.28 276.77
Service tax - 4.31
Miscellaneous 1.22 0.74
Total 278.50 281.82

Note : The Company’s management does not believe, based on currently available information, that the outcomes of the above matters will have
a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position, though the outcomes could be material to the Company’s operating results for any
particular period, depending, in part, upon the operating results for such year. It is not practical for the Company to estimate the timings of cash

flows, if any, in respect of the above.

Commitment

Capital commitment

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account
and not provided for (net of advances)

Other commitment

The Company has imported capital goods under the export promotion capital
goods scheme to utilise the benefit of a zero or concessional customs duty
rate. These benefits are subject to future exports within the stipulated
period. Such export obligation at year end aggregate as under.

Export promotion capital goods scheme (refer note 16)

6.51

689.54

648.40

Note: The Company has, subsequent to the balance sheet date, filed an application with The Additional Director General of Foreign Trade (ADGFT)
to consider exports made by JSW Steel Limited towards discharge of export obligation relating to imports made earlier by the Company under

CPCG Schemea. Tha Company expects 1o get the positive approval so reguired ur due course of Lime.

Note 27
Additional information

Disclosure pertaining to micro enterprises and small enterprises (as per information available with the Company)

Rs. in crores

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2019

Principal amount outstanding as at end of year

Interest due on above and unpaid as at end of year

interest paid to suppliers

Payment made to suppliers beyond the appointment day during the year
Interest due and payable for the year of delay

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at end of year

Amount of further interest remaining due and payable in succeeding year

C.I.F. value of imports:

As at
March 31, 2018
0.03
0.01

Rs. in crores

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

For the year ended
March 31, 2018

Raw materials
Store and spare parts
Capital goods

Total

Expenditure in foreign currency

2,297.87 1,429.54
8.87 8.33
0.10 8.25

2,306.84 1,446.12

Rs. in crores

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

For the year ended
March 31, 2018

Interest and finance charges 17.87 14.12
Ocean freight 19.56 29.26
FCMITDA expense ”,’/ %N NS 12.28 3.65
Total Ay <f AN 49.71 47.03
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AMBA RIVER COKE LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements

Note 28

Finance leases

The Company has evaluated certain arrangements for sale of its products based on the facts and circumstances existing at the date of transition
to Ind AS and have identified them to be in the nature of lease as the fulfiiment of these arrangements depends upon specific assets identified
in the respective arrangement and the Company has committed to sell substantially all the production capacity of the assets to the counter
party. After separating lease payments from other elements in these arrangement, the Company has recognised finance lease receivable for
plant and equipment given under finance lease (Refer note 4).

The minimum lease payments receivable and their present value as at March 31, 2019 in respect of aforesaid plant and equipment provided
under the finance leases are as follows.

Future minimum lease rental receivable under non-cancellable finance lease

Particulars Minimum lease payments Present value of minimum lease payments
As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Not later than one year 374.66 373.84 100.18 88.03
Later than one year and not later than five years 1,498.66 1,869.19 559.15 658.18
Later than five years 2,084.09 2,080.46 1,460.65 1,457.82
Total 3,957.41 4,323.49 2,119.98 2,204.03
Less: Unearned finance income 1,837.43 2,119.46

Present value of minimum lease payments 2,119.98 2,204.03

Unguaranteed residual values of assets given under finance leases as at March 31, 2019 are estimated at Rs. 976.76 Cores (as at March 31, 2018
Rs 976.76 Crore)

The interest rate inherent in the lease is fixed at the contract date for the entire lease term and an imputed finance income on the finance lease
receivable is recognised using the interest rate implicit in the lease.

Note 29

A. Financial risk management

The Company's principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowing, trade and other payables. The main purpose
of these financial liabilities is to finance the company's operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations. The Company's principal
financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents. The group also holds FVTOCI investments and enters
into derivative transactions.

The Company has formulated and implemented a Risk Management Policy for evaluating business risks. The risk management policies are
established to ensure timely identification and evaluation of risks, setting acceptable risk thresholds, identifying and mapping controls against
these risks, monitor the risks and their limits, improve risk awareness and transparency. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed
regularly to reflect changes in the market conditions and the Company’s activities to provide reliable information to the Management and the
Board to evaluate the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risk faced by the Company.

The risk management policies aims to mitigate the following risks arising from the financial instruments:
- Market risk

- Credit risk; and

- Liquidity risk

B. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the market prices. The
Company is exposed in the ordinary course of its business to risks related to changes in foreign currency exchange rates, commodity prices and
interest rates.

The Company seeks to minimize the effects of these risks by using derivative financial instruments to hedge risk exposures. The use of financial
derivatives is governed by the Company’s policies approved by the Board of Directors, which provide written principles on foreign exchange risk,
interest rate risk, credit risk, the use of financial derivatives and non-derivative financial instruments, and the investment of excess liquidity.
Compliance with policies and exposure limits is reviewed by the Management on a continuous basis. The Company does not enter into or trade
financial instruments, including derivatives for speculative purposes.




AMBA RIVER COKE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements

C. Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Company is exposed to interest rate risk because funds are borrowed at both fixed and floating interest rates. Interest rate risk is
measured by using the cash flow sensitivity for changes in variable interest rate. The borrowings of the Company are principally denominated in
rupees with a mix of fixed and floating rates of interest. The Company has exposure to interest rate risk, arising principally on changes in base
lending rate. The Company uses a mix of interest rate sensitive financial instruments to manage the liquidity and fund requirements for its day
to day operations. The risk is managed by the Company by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings.

The following table provides a break-up of the Company’s fixed and floating rate borrowings:

Rs. in crores

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Borrowings
Fixed rate borrowings 300.00 375.00
Floating rate borrowings 648.31 871.41
Total borrowings 948.31 1,246.41
Less: upfront fees 2.51 5.22
Total borrowings 945.80 1,241.19

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for floating rate liabilities, assuming the amount of
the corrosponding liability outstanding at the year-end was outstanding for the whole year.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher / lower and all other variables were held constant, the Company’s profit for the year ended 31
March 2019 would decrease / increase by Rs. 6.46 crores {for the year ended 31 March 2018: decrease / increase by Rs. 8.67 crores). This is
mainly attributable to the Company’s exposure to interest rates on its variable rate borrowings

D. Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates.

The Campany's functional currency is Indian Rupees (INR), The Company undartakes transactions denaminated in foreign currencies;
consequently, exposure to exchange rate fluctuations arise. Volatility in exchange rates affects the costs of imports, primarily in relation to raw
materials. The Company is exposed to exchange rate risk under its trade and debt portfolio.

Adverse movements in the exchange rate between the Rupee and any relevant foreign currency result’s in increase in the Company’s overall
debt position in Rupee terms without the Company having incurred additional debt. In order to hedge exchange rate risk, the Company has a
policy to hedge cash flows up to a specific tenure using forward exchange contracts . In respect of imports and other payables, the Company
hedges its payables as when the exposure arises. Short term exposures are hedged progressively based on their maturity.

/5
(= 61%:3;‘-\1

7~ &
A

W\
N




AMBA RIVER COKE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements

All hedging activities are carried out in accordance with the internal risk management policies as adopted by JSW Steel Limited, the parent
company and in accordance with the applicable regulations where the Company operates.

The carrying amounts of the Company’s monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
Rs. in crores

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

EURO usD INR Total EURO usD INR Total
Financial assets
Investments - - 52.38 52.38 - - 41.92 41.92
Finance lease receivable - - 2,119.98 2,119.98 - - 2,204.03 2,204.03
Other financial assets ( including - 44.57 226.76 271.33 - 1.81 506.88 508.69
Derivative assets)
Loan - - 421.57 421.57 - - 134.64 134.64
Trade receivables - - 50.99 50.99 - - 35.90 35.90
Cash and cash equivalents - - 0.21 0.21 - - 4.49 4.49
Bank balances other than cash and - - 7.45 7.45 - - 7.02 7.02
cash equivalents
Total financial assets - 44,57 2,879.34 2,923.91 - 1.81 2,934.88 2,936.69
Financial liabilities
Long term borrowings - - 944.19 944.19 - 212.30 1,027.30 1,239.60
Short term borrowings - - 1.61 1.61 - - 1.59 1.59
Trade payables 0.18 362.54 213.71 576.43 0.01 482.94 462.19 945.13
Other financial liabilities (including 0.50 38.85 25.55 64.90 5.52 0.82 31.68 38.02
Derivative Liabilities)
Total financial liabilities 0.68 401.38 1,185.07 1,587.13 5.53 696.06 1,522.76 2,224.34

The following table details the Company’s sensitivity to a 1% increase and decrease in the INR against the relevant foreign currencies net of hedge
accounting impact. 1% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denaminated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the year-end for a 1% change in foreign currency rates, with all olher
variables held constant. A positive number below indicates an increase in profit or equity where INR strengthens 1% against the relevant currency.
For a 1% weakening of INR against the relevant currency, there would be a comparable impact on profit or equity, and the balances below would
be negative.

Rs. in crores
Particulars Increase Decrease
As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Payable
USD/INR 0.97 3.06 {0.97) (3.06)
The Forward exchange contracts entered into by the Company and outstanding are as under:
As at No. of Type uss$ INR MTM
Contracts equivalent equivalent  gain/(loss)
Million (Rsin  (Rs in crores)
crores)
March 31, 2019 3 buy 37.66 260.49 (8.12)
March 31, 2018 4 buy 59.82 389.81 1.30
Unhedged Currency Risk position:
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
USS equivalent INR equivalent USS$ equivalent INR equivalent
Million (Rs in crores) Million (Rs in crores)

Amount receivable in foreign currency
Other financial assets s = 0.28 1.81
Amount payable in foreign currency

Long term borrowings - - 212.30
Trade payables 14.78 102.22 93.14
Other financial liabilities 0.12 0.81 6.34
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E. Commodity price risk
The Company's revenue is determined as per Coke purchase and Pellet purchase agreement between Amba River Coke Limited and JSW Steel
Limited.

The Company is subjected to fluctuation in prices for the purchase of iron ore, coking coal and other raw material inputs. The Company
purchased primarily all of its iron ore and coal requirement at prevailing market rates during the year ended 31 March 2019.

Commodity hedging is used primarily as a risk management tool to secure the future cash flows in case of volatility by entering into
commodity forward contracts.

Hedging commodity is based on its procurement schedule and price risk. Commodity hedging is undertaken as a risk offsetting exercise and
depending upon market condition hedges, may extend beyond the financial year.

The following table details the Company's sensitivity to a 5% movement in the input price of iron ore and coking coal. The sensitivity analysis
includes only 5% change in commodity prices for quantity sold or consumed during the year, with all other variable held constant. A positive
number below indicates an increase in profit or equity where the commaodity prices decrease by 5% and vice-versa.

Rs. in crores

Commodity Increase for the year ended Decrease for the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Iron ore fines 81.38 99.14 (81.38) {99.14)
Coking Coal 113.54 97.55 (113.54) (97.55)
As at Nature No. of Commodity Quantity uss$ INR MTM
Contracts Name {MT) equivalent equivalent (Rsin crores)
Million (Rs in
crores)
March 31, 2019 Assets 12 IRON ORE 375003 23.83 164.85 44.57
March 31, 2019 Liabilities 10 IRON ORE 375003 (25.90) (179.15) (30.42)
March 31, 2018 Assets 1 IRON ORE 10000 0.55 3.56 0.51

F. Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. Credit risk
encompasses of both, the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration risks. The Company
has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of
mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults,

Company's credit risk arises principally from the trade receivables, finance lease receivable, cash and cash equivalents and derivatives.

Trade receivables:

Customer credit risk is managed centrally by the Company and subject to established policy, procedures and control relating to customer
credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on an extensive credit rating scorecard and individual credit limits
defined in accordance with the assessment.

Trade receivables consist of dues from related parties. The outstanding trade receivables are regularly monitored and appropriate action is
taken for collection of overdue receivables.

The history of trade receivables does not show any allowance for bad and doubtful debts and accordingly, the Company has not recognised
any allowance for expected credit loss on its recievables.

Finance lease receivable:

The Company’s centralised treasury function manages the financial risks relating to the business. The treasury function focusses on capital
protection, liquidity and yield maximisation. Investments of surplus funds are made only in approved counterparties within credit limits
assigned for each of the counterparty.

The Company enters into agreements, comprising a transaction or series of related transactions that does not take the legal form of a lease
but conveys the right to use the assets in return for payment or series of payments. Finance lease receivable under such arrangements are
secured against underlying property, plant and equipment and accordingly, no significant concentration of credit risk persist.

Cash and cash equivalents, derivatives :

Credit risks from balances with banks and financial institutions are managed in accordance with the Company policy. For derivative and
financial instruments, the Company attempts to limit the credit risk by only dealing with reputable banks and financial institutions having high
credit-ratings assigned by credit-rating agencies.

The Company’s maximum exposure to the credit risk for the components of balance sheet as As at March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 is the
carrying amounts mentioned in Note no. 9 (trade receivables) except for finance lease receivable and derivative financial instruments. The
maximum exposure relating to finance lease receivable and financial derivative instruments is disclosed in Note no. 4 and 30 respectively.
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AMBA RIVER COKE LIMITED
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G. Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk refers to the risk of financial distress or extraordinary high financing costs arising due to shortage of liquid funds in a situation

where business conditions unexpectedly deteriorate and requiring financing.

The following tables detail the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment
periods and its non-derivative financial assets. The tables have been drawn up for the cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date

on which the Company can be required to pay.

The contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which the Company may be required to pay.

Rs. in crores

LOEE Less than 1 Year 1-5Year More than Total
March 31, 2019 5 years
Financial assets
Non-current investment - - 52.38 52.38
Trade receivables 50.99 - 50.99
Cash and cash equivalents 0.21 - 0.21
Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents 7.73 - - 7.73
Finance lease receivable 374.66 1,498.66 2,084.09 3,957.41
Loans 459,58 - - 459.58
Other financial assets 171.91 95.81 3.61 271.33
Total financial assets 1,065.08 1,594.47 2,140.08 4,799.63
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Long term borrowings# 187.31 756.88 - 944.19
Interest on borrowings 80.01 89.09 - 169.10
Short term borrowings 1.61 - - 1.61
Trade payables 576.43 576.43
Other financial liabilities 64.90 - - 64.90
Total financial liabilities 910.26 845.97 E 1,756.23
# Including current maturltles of long-lerm debt

Rs. in crores
:nsa?;h 31,2018 Less than 1 Year 1-5 Year M:;Z:'::“ Total
Financial assets
Non-current investment - - 41.92 41.92
Trade receivables 35.90 - - 35.90
Cash and cash equivalents 4.49 4.49
Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents 7.58 . 7.58
Finance lease receivable 373.84 1,869.19 2,080.46 4,323.49
Loans 82.61 72.03 - 154.64
Other financial assets 414.07 92.71 1.91 508.69
Total financial assets 918.49 2,033.93 2,124.29 5,076.71
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Long term borrowingst 296.45 943.15 = 1,239.60
Interest on borrowings 99.96 169.10 269.06
Short term borrowings 1.59 1.59
Trade payables 945.13 945.13
Other financial liabilities 38.02 - 38.02
Total financial liabilities 1,381.15 1,112.25 - 2,493.40

# Including current maturities of long-term debt

Collateral

The Company has pledged part of its trade receivables, and cash and cash equivalents in order to fulfil certain collateral requirements for the
banking facilities extended to the Company. (Refer note 13,14 and 17)
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Note 30

Categories of financial instruments

Rs. in crores

Particulars

As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Carrying amount Carrying amount

Financial assets

Measured at amortised cost

Non-current investments 0.03 0.03
Other financial assets 226.76 506.88
Finance lease receivables 2,119.98 2,204.03
Loan 421.57 134.64
Trade receivables 50.99 35.90
Cash and cash equivalents 0.21 4.49
Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents 7.45 7.02
Total financial assets at amortised cost (A) 2,826.99 2,892.99
Measured at fair value through profit and loss
Foreign currency forward contract designated in hedge accounting relationship 1.30
Total financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (B) - 1.30
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Non-current investments 52.35 41.89
Commodity forward contracts designated in hedge accounting relationship 44.57 0.51
Total financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (C) 96.92 42.40
Total financial assets (A) + (B} + (C ) 2,923.91 2,936.69
Financial liabilities
Measured at amortised cost
Long term borrowings # 944.19 1,239.60
Short term borrowings 1.61 1.59
Trade payables 576.43 945.13
Other financial liabilities 26.36 38.02
Total financial liabilities at amortised cost (A) 1,548.59 2,224.34
# Including current maturities of long-term debt
Measured at fair value through profit and loss
Foreign currency forward contracts designated in hedge accounting relationship 8.12
Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss (B) 8.12 -
Financial liabilities at tair value through other comprehensive income
Commodity forward contracts designated in hedge accounting relationship 30.42
Total financial liabilities at fair value through other comprehensive income (C} 30.42 -
Total financial liabilities (A) + (B) + (C ) 1,587.13 2,224.34
Note 31
Fair value measurements Rs. in crores
Particulars As at As at ) i .
Valuation techniques and key input
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 Level
{ A ) Assets and liabilities measured at fair value
(a) Non-current investments in equity shares measured at FVTOCI 52.35 41,89 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market
Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are
i d f
(b) Forward contracts - Assets } 1.30 2 estimated based on orw_ard exchange rates and
contract forward rates, discounted at a rate that
reflects the credit risk of counterparties.
Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are
timated based on co dity price inde d
{c } Commodity forward contracts - Assets 44.57 0.51 2 €s . mmo e .
contract commaodity rates, discounted at a rate that
reflects the credit risk of counterparties.
Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are
estimated based on forward exchange rates and
(d) Forward contracts - Liability 8.12 2 X
contract forward rates, discounted at a rate that
reflects the credit risk of counterparties.
Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are
X e estimated based on commodity price index and
{e) Commodity forward contracts - Liabilities 30.42 - 2 . )
contract commodity rates, discounted at a rate that
reflects the credit risk of counterparties.
( B ) Assets and liabilities for which fair value are disclosed
Generally accepted pricing model based on a
(a) Finance lease receivables 2,093.64 2,182.70 3 discounted cash flows analysis, with most significant
input being the discount rate,
(b) Borrowings Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are
943.83 1,229.77 3

discounted at a rate that reflects market risks.

Financial assets and liabilities, other than detailed in the table above that are not measured at fair value but for which fair values are disclosed, the management consider that their carrying

amounts approximate their fair values.
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Note 32

Capital risk management

The Company being in a capital intensive industry, its objective is to maintain a strong credit rating healthy capital ratios and
establish a capital structure that would maximise the return to stakeholders through optimum mix of debt and equity.

The Company’s capital requirement is mainly to fund its routine capital investment, repayment of principal and interest on its
borrowings. The principal source of funding of the Company has been, and is expected to continue to be, cash generated
from its operations supplemented by funding from bank borrowings and the capital markets. The Company is not subject to
any externally imposed capital requirements.

The Company regularly considers other financing and refinancing opportunities to diversify its debt profile, reduce interest
cost and elongate the maturity of its debt portfolio, and closely monitors its judicious allocation amongst competing capital
expansion projects and strategic acquisitions, to capture market opportunities at minimum risk.

The Company monitors its capital using gearing ratio, which is net debt divided to total equity. Net debt includes, interest
bearing loans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents & bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents.

Rs. in crores

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Long term borrowings including current maturities 944.19 1,239.60
Short term borrowings 1.61 1.59
Total Debt 945.80 1,241.19
Less - Cash and cash equivalents (0.21) (4.49)
Less - Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents (7.45) (7.02)
Net debt 938.14 1,229.68
Total equity 1,696.41 1,511.64
Gearing ratio 0.55 0.81

{i) Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Company that are managed as capital.
(i) Debt is defined as long term borrowings and short term borrowings, as described in notes 13, 14 and 17.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended 31 March 2019
and 31 March 2018.
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Notes to the financial statements

Note 33
Employee benefits
a) Defined contribution plan:

The Company operates defined contribution retirement benefit plans for all qualifying employees through government administered fund. Company is required to contribute a specified
percentage of payroll cost to the fund.

Company's contribution to provident fund and other funds for the year is Rs.1.43 crores for the year ended March 31, 2019 (for the year ended March 31, 2018: Rs. 1.39 crores) (included in note
23).

b) Defined benefit plan:

Gratuity

Under the Gratuity plan, the eligible employees are entitled to post-retirement benefit at the rate of 15 days salary for each year of service until the retirement age of 58, 60 and 62, without any
payment ceiling. The vesting period for Gratuity as payable under The Payment of Gratuity Act is 5 years.

Under the compensated absences plan, leave encashment is payable to all eligible employees on separation from the Company due to death, retirement, superannuation or resignation. at the
rate of daily salary, as per the accumulation of leave days.

The plans in India typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: Interest risk, Salary risk, Asset Liability Matching risk and Mortality risk.

Interest risk A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the Government Security rate will increase the present value of the liability requiring higher provision.

Salary risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members. As such,

an increase in the salary of the members more than assumed level will increase the plan’s liability.
Asset liability The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. Company has to manage payout based on pay as you go
Matching risk  basis from own funds.
Mortality risk  Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for lifetime and payable tili retirement age only, plan doesn't not have any
longevity risk.

No other post-retirement benefits are provided to employees.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out at March 31,2019 by M/s. K. A. Pandit, Consultants & Actuaries. The present value of
the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method.

The gratuity liability is not funded and the same is accounted for based on third party actuarial valuation. The following table sets out the unfunded status of the defined benefit scheme and the
amount recognised in the financial statement.

{i) Gratuity {hun fundud) Rs. Ih crores
a. Liability recognized in the Balance Sheet As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Present value of obligation
Opening balance 2.07 2.07
Service cost 0.25 0.25
Interest cost 0.16 0.16
Actuarial( gain) /loss on obligation arising from: (0.20) {0.28})
Benefits paid (0.09) {0.13)
Closing balance (Refer notel5) 2.20 2.07

Rs. in crores

b. Expenses during the year For the Period ended  For the Period ended

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Service cost 0.25 0.25
Interest cost 0.16 0.16
Component of defined benefit cost recognized in statement of profit and loss (a) (Refer note23) 0.41 0.41
Actuarial {gain)/loss on defined benefit obligation (0.20) {0.28)
Component of defined benefit cost recognized in other comprehensive income (b) {0.20) (0.28}
Total (a +b) 0.21 0.13

c. Plan assets
Since gratuity plan is non-funded, hence figures in respect of plan assets are NIL.

d. In assessing the Company's post retirement liabilities, the Company monitors mortality assumption and uses up-to-date mortality tables, the base being the Indian assured lives mortality {2006-
2008) ultimate,
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Note 33 (continued)

e. The estimates of future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the
employment market,

f. The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations.

g. Principal actuarial assumptions

As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Discount rate 7.79% 7.86%
Expected rate(s) of salary increase 6.00% 6.00%
Attrition rate 2.00% 2.00%
Mortality rate during employment Indian assured lives mortality { 2006-2008)

h. Sensitivity analysis

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality. The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

Rs. in crores
As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate {1% movement) 0.23 0.28 (0.19) 0.23
Future salary growth (1% movement) 0.28 (0.24) 0.23 (0.20)
Rate of employee turnover (1% movement) 0.05 {0.05) 0.03 {0.04)

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of
one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting
period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet.

i. Maturity analysis of projected benefit obligation. Rs. in crores
Particulars Less than Between Over
Total
ayear 2tob5 years 5 years
As at March 31, 2019
Defined benefit obligation 0.06 0.36 6.41 6.83
As at March 31,2018
Defined benefit obligation 0.12 0.54 5.26 5.92

c) Compensated absences

Assumptions used in accounting for compensated absences

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Present value of unfunded obligation {Rs. in crores) 1.14 1.08
Expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss (Rs. in crores) 0.06 0.06
Discount rate (p.a.) 7.79% 7.86%

Salary escalation rate (p.a.) 6.00% 6.00%
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Note 34
Related party disclosures
A. Relationships
1 Holding company
JSW Steel Limited

2 Fellow subsidiaries
JSW Steel Coated Products Limited
JSW Steel (Salav) Limited

3 Key management personnel (KMP)
Mr. Ajit Karande (Whole-time director) (ceased w.e.f. 01.02.2018)
Mr. Gautam Mitra (Chief financial officer) (ceased w.e.f. 01.05.2018)
Mr. Rajeev Jain (Company secretary)
Mrs. Nayantara Palchoudhuri
Mr. Jugal Kishore Tandon
Mr. Pradeep Bhargava
Mr. Prem Pushkar Varma (Whole-time director) (w.e.f. 01.02.2018)
Mr. Ashok Kumar Aggarwal
Mr. Sudhir Yagnik (Chief financial officer) (w.e.f. 15.11.2018)

4 Other related parties
(Enterprises over which Key Management Personnel of the company or the holding company and relatives of
such personnal axarcise significant influence)

JSW Cement Limited

Jindal Steel & Power Limited

Jindal Saw Limited

JSW Severfield Structures Limited

JSW Energy Limited

Jindal Stainless Limited

JSW International Tradecorp Pte. Limited
Dolvi Mineral and Metals Private Limited
Dolvi Coke Projects Limited

Epsilon Carbon Private Limited (AVH Private Limited)
JSW Jaigarh Port Limited

JSW Green Energy Limited

JSW Techno Projects Management Limited
JSW Foundation

JSW IPholding Private Limited

JSW Dharamtar Port Private Limited

JSW Infrastructure Limited

JSW Project Limited

Monet Ispat & Energy Limited
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Notes to the financial statements
Note 34

B. Transactions with related parties

Rs. in crores

Sr.No.  Nature of transactions /relationship

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

For the year ended
March 31, 2018

1 A. Purchase of goods/ power & fuel
Holding company
JSW Steel Limited

Fellow subsidiaries
JSW Steel {Salav) Limited
JSW Steel Coated Products Limited

Other related parties
JSW International Tradecorp Pte. Limited
JSW Cement Limited
Jindal Steel & Power Limited
Dolvi Mineral and Metals Private Limited
JSW Energy Limited

B. Purchase of services
Fellow subsidiaries
JSW Steel (Salav) Limited

Other related parties
JSW Dharamtar Port Private Limited
JSW Jaigarh Port Limited
Total

2 Sales of goods
Holding company
JSW Steel Limited

Fellow subsidiaries
JSW Steel (Salav) Limited

Other related parties
JSW Cement Limited
Epsilon Carbon Private Limited (AVH Private Limited)
Dolvi Coke Projects Limited
Total

3 Finance lease income
Holding company
JSW Steel Limited
Total

4 Compensation to

Key management personnel (KMP)*
Ajit Karande (Whole-time director)
Prem Pushkar Varma (Whole-time director)
Sudhir Yagnik {Chief financial officer)
Gautam Mitra (Chief financial officer)
Rajeev Jain {Company secretary)
Total

5 Sitting fees
Key management personnel (KMP)
Nayantara Palchoudhuri
Jugal Kishore Tandon
D . Total

438.71 1,282.61
38.90 31.65
- 0.41
2,056.98 1,589.30
0.23 0.06
0.69 0.61
12.58 14.82
149.01 126.66
4.48 8.03
59.17 70.94
102.99 96.60
2,863.74 3,221.69
4,430.22 4,359.82
541.54 522.77
7.93 0.16
104.85 53.68
9.14 2.15
5,093.68 4,938.58
285.96 295.49
285.96 295.49
. 0.64
0.92 0.14
0.21 -
0.12 0.45
0.65 0.61
1.90 1.84
0.02 0.01
0.02 0.02
0.04 0.03
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B. Transactions with related parties

Rs. in crores
Sr. No.  Nature of transactions /relationship For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
6 Expenses incurred on behalf of the Company
Holding company
JSW Steel Limited 0.78 21.92
Total 0.78 21,92
7 Reimbursement of expenses incurred by the Company
Other related parties
Dolvi Coke Projects Limited 0.03 0.45
Monet Ispat & Energy Limited 0.21 -
Dolvi Minerals & Metals Private Limited 0.11
Total 0.35 0.45
8 Other income
Holding company
JSW Steel Limited E 1.38
Fellow subsidiaries
JSW Steel (Salav) Limited 0.85 0.09
Other related parties
Dolvi Coke Projects Limited 5.84 3.05
JSW Techno Projects Management Limited 9.69 12.26
JSW Projects Limited 0.25 -
Total 16.63 16.78
9 Interest expense
Holding enmpany
JSW Steel Limited 38.73 54.76
Total 38.73 54.76
10 Other expenses
Other related parties
JSW Green Energy Limited 6.67 5.23
JSW IP Holdings Private limited 0.17 0.07
JISW Foundation 1.87 -
Total 8.72 5.30
11 Commission paid
Holding company
ISW Steel Limited 3.67 3.35
Total 3.67 3.35
12 Security deposit paid
Other related parties
Dolvi Coke Projects Limited - 100.00
Total - 100.00
13 Loan given received back
Other related parties
JSW Techno Projects Management Limited 4.61 447.00
Total 4.61 447.00

14 Advance received back
Other related parties

Dolvi Mineral and Metals Private Limited 0.18 -

Total 0.18 -
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B. Transactions with related parties

Sr.No. Nature of transactions /relationship

Rs. in crores
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

15 Security deposit received back

Other related parties

Dolvi Coke Projects Limited

Total

16 Security deposit given
Other related parties

JSW IP Holdings Private limited

Total

17 Loan given
Other related parties

JSW Projects Limited

Total

18 Advance received from a customer

Holding company
JSW Steel Limited
Total

100.00 -

100.00 A

0.01 -

0.01 -

300.00 -

300.00 3

300.00 -

300.00 -
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Note 34

C. Related party balances

Rs. in crores

Sr. No. Closing balances of related parties

As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

1  Security deposits / advance given
Holding company
JSW Steel Limited

Other related parties
Jindal Saw Limited
Jindal Stainless Limited
JSW Infrastructure Limited
Jindal Steel & Power Limited
JSW Jaigarh Port Limited
Dolvi Mineral and Metals Private Limited
ISW IPholding Private Limited
Dolvi Coke Projects Limited
Total

2  Trade payables
Holding company
JSW Steel Limited

Fellow subsidiaries
JSW Steel Coated Products Limited

Other related parties
JSW Energy Limited
JSW Severfield Structures Limited
JSW International Tradecorp Pte. Limited
JSW Jaigarh Port Limited
JSW Dharamtar Port Private Limited
Jindal Steel & Power Limited
Dolvi Mineral and Metals Private Limited
ISW [P Holdings Private Limited
Total

3 Trade receivables
Holding company
JSW Steel Limited

Fellow subsidiaries
JSW Steel (Salav) Limited

Other related parties
Epsilon Carbon Private Limited (AVH Private Limited)
Dolvi Coke Projects Limited
JSW Cement Limited
Total

1.63 1.47
0.04 0.04
- 0.01
0.29
o 0.12
2.30 2.30
= 0.19
0.01 -
= 102.74
4.27 106.87
142.29 294.64
0.01 0.01
13.91 13.42
0.01 0.01
157.02 290.03
6.73 13.49
4.70 13.91
0.56 -
12.47 .
- 0.07
337.70 625.58
= 28.00
39.36
8.81 5.69
= 2.15
2.82 0.06
50.99 35.90
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Note 34

C. Related party balances

Rs. in crores

Sr. No. Closing balances of related parties

As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

4 Corporate guarantees on behalf of the company given by the
Holding company
JSW Steel Limited 102.12 102.12
Total 102.12 102.12
5 Finance lease receivable
Holding company
JSW Steel Limited 2,119.98 2,204.03
Total 2,119.98 2,204.03
6 Loan given
Other related parties
JSW Techno Projects Management Limited 104.72 111.65
JSW Projects Limited 300.22 -
Total 404.94 111.65
7  Other receivables
Fellow subsidiaries
JSW Steel (Salav) Limited - 491
Monet Ispat & Energy limited 0.21 -
Total 0.21 4,91
8  Other payables
Holding company
JSW Steel Limited - 58.94
Other related parties
Dolvi Coke Projects Limited 0.01 -
JSW Foundation 0.67 -
Total 0.68 58.94
9 Advance from customer
Holding company
JSW Steel Limited 300.00 -
Total 300.00 -
D. Terms and conditions

Sale:

The sales to related parties are in the ordinary course of business. Sale transactions are based on prevailing market
price/ long- term arrangements signed with related parties. For the year ended March 31, 2019, the Company has not
recorded any loss allowances for trade receivables from related parties.

Purchases :
The purchases from related parties are in the ordinary course of business as per agreed commercial terms.

* Compensation to key managerial person represent short term employee benefits accrued to them. The future liability
for gratuity is provided on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole, hence the amount pertaining to individual is
not ascertainable and therefore not included above.
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Note 35

Earnings per share (EPS)

Rs. in crores
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Profit attributable to Equity share holders (A) 176.41 168.78
Weighted average number of Equity shareholders for basic and diluted EPS (B) {In Nos.) 931,898,670 931,898,670
Basic and diluted EPS {(Amount in Rs.) (A/B) 1.89 1.81

Note 36

Income taxes

Indian companies are subject to Indian income tax on a standalone basis. Each entity is assessed to tax on taxable profits determined for
each fiscal year beginning on April 1 and ending on March 31. For each fiscal year, the respective entities’ profit or loss is subject to the
higher of the regular income tax payable or the minimum alternative tax (“MAT").

Statutory income taxes are assessed based on book profits prepared under generally accepted accounting principles in India adjusted in
accordance with the provisions of the (Indian) Income tax Act, 1961. Such adjustments generally relate to depreciation of fixed assets,
disallowances of certain provisions and accruals, the use of tax losses and depreciation carried forward and retirement benefit costs.
Statutory income tax is charged at 34.944%. MAT is assessed on book profits adjusted for certain items as compared to the adjustments
followed for assessing regular income tax under normal provisions. MAT for the fiscal year 2018-19 is 22.50%. MAT paid in excess of regular
income tax during a year can be set off against regular income taxes within a period of fifteen years succeeding the year in which MAT credit
arises subject to the limits prescribed.

(a) Income tax expense/ (benefits)

Rs. in crores
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Current tax :
Current tax (MAT) 61.46 58.37
Deferred tax :
Deferred tax 96.82 93.12
MAT credit entitlement (61.46) (58.37)
Total deferred tax 35.36 34.75
Total tax expense / (benefit) 96.82 93.12

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to accounting profit / (loss) before tax at the statutory income tax rate to recognised
income tax expense for the year indicated are as follows:

Rs. in crores
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Profit before tax 273.23 261.90
Enacted tax rate in India 34.944% 34.608%
Expected income tax expense at statutory tax rate 95.48 90.64
Expense not deductible in determining taxable profits 1.45 1.16
Income exempt from taxation - (0.10)
Effect of differential tax rate on temporary differences (0.11) 0.88
Others = 0.54
Tax expense for the year 93.12

Effective income tax rate 35.56%
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Deferred tax assets / liabilities

Significant components of deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) recognised in the financial statements are as follows :

Rs. in crores

Deferred tax assets/ {liabilities) balance in relation to :

As at

Recognised /

Recognised in /

As at

March 31, 2018 {reversed) reclassified from March 31, 2019
through profit other

and loss comprehensive
Plant property and equipment 369.09 (51.36) - 317.73
Carried forward business loss/ unabsorbed depreciation 235.95 (71.90) - 164.05
Foreign currency monetary item translation difference account (FCMITDA) 10.16 (9.68) (0.48)
Minimum alternative tax (MAT) credit 150.32 61.46 211.78
Expense deductible on payment basis 1.10 0.07 - 117
Finance lease receivable (770.18) 29.37 - (740.81)
Financial assets- Indirect tax balances/recoverable/credits - 4,30 4.30
Others 10.58 2.38 (4.84) 8.12
Total 7.02 (35.36) (5.32) (33.66)

Rs. in crores
Deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) balance in relation to : Recognised / Recognised in /
As at {reversed) reclassified from As at

March 31, 2017

through profit

and loss comprehensive

other

March 31, 2018

Plant property and equipment 421.73 (52.64) - 369.09
Carried forward business loss/ unabsorbed depreciation 291.97 (56.02) 235.95
Foreign currency monetary item translation difference account (FCMITDA) 11.53 (1.37) 10.16
Minimum alternative tax (MAT) credit 91.95 58.37 - 150.32
Expense deductible on payment basis 1.08 0.02 - 1.10
Finance lease receivable (784.64) 14.46 - {770.18)
Others 9.52 1.06 - 10.58
Total 43.14 (34.75) (1.37) 7.02
Note 37

Segment reporting

The Company is in the business of manufacturing raw material for steel products produced by the parent company, having similar economic characteristics , primarily
operated in India and reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker for assessment of Company's performance and resources allocation on an overall basis.

All non-current assets of the Company are located in India,

Note 38
Subsequent events

There are no material subsequent events that would require adjustments or disclosures in the financial statements .

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

-

Dsdte Yo

Place: Mumbai
Date : April 30, 2019

Pradeep Bhargava
Director

Rajeev J&j
Company Secretary

Prem Pushkar Varma
Whole-time Director

gwal v 7/4’7 i

Sudhir Yagnik
Chief Financial Officer
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